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CHAIR CARROLL: " . (gavel) . .. This Land Use Committee meeting of June i h is now in session.
Good afternoon, Members. We have with us this morning [sic] . .. Councilmember Johnson,
Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares, and Anderson. Excused at this time are Members Mateo, Kane, and
Hokama; and Mr. Kane should be joining us shortly.

ITEM NO. 42:

CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR A PSYCHOLOGIST OFFICE (MAKAWAO)

(e.e. No. 06-53)
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, this morning [sic] we have three items on our agenda. The first being
LU-42, Conditional Permit for a psychologist office in Makawao. The Committee is in receipt of
the following:
County Communication No. 06-53, from the Planning Director, transmitting a proposed bill to
grant a request from Richard M. Sword, Ph.D., Inc. for a two-year Conditional Permit to operate
a psychologist office on approximately 2.09 acres at 30 Ahuwale Place, Makawao, Maui.
Correspondence dated April 5, 2006, from the Department of the Corporation Counsel,
transmitting a revised proposed bill entitled "A
FOR AN ORDINANCE GRANTING
M. SWORD,
INC.
CONDITIONAL PERMIT
OPERATE A
PSYCHOLOGIST OFFICE WITHIN
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT
PROPERTY
SITUATED
MAKAWAO, MAUl,
, and the purpose of the revised proposed bill is
to grant his request.
This morning [sic] we will hear, first, a five-minute presentation from the applicant or his
representative, and then from the Department. If the applicant could please come forward to the
podium. Please identify yourself by name at the podium for the record.
MR. SWORD: Thank you very much. Is, is this on?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
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MR. SWORD: Okay. I'm ... my name is Dr. Richard Sword and I'm a clinical psychologist here on
Maui. I've been working and practicing here almost 25 years, and I've been on the hospital staff
almost 20 years. We're working together to help the health care delivery of, of Maui, and my
proposal is I would like an adjunct office to be able to open up in my property in Makawao, and
there's several reasons and justifications for me. One reason is that I would like to do horse
therapy and dog therapy, and animal-assisted therapy is a, is a real growing concern. I added a
lot of information about it, and I just wanted to show this is a newsletter from the Adult Mental
Health Division, State of Hawaii, for March of this year and we're implementing animal
therapies in all the State hospitals across the State, and so my project is really very much in line
with what's going on. I did a presentation yesterday for the Maui Mental Health Association and
it was very well attended, and they were very supportive and thought this was a, an excellent
program. The other thing I do is I work a lot with Maui's veteran population and, and quite a
few have come in support today, and I think they would like much better to be in a rural setting
and not in a, a downtown clinical kind of setting, but where they feel more comfortable, more
ohana, and more in keeping with our culture and character and tradition of our islands. And they
find it, the therapy much more appealing and acceptable in a rural setting, in a home setting than
in a downtown clinical setting.
So that's basically what I'd like to do. There were ... all of my neighbors signed an agreement,
and in front of the Commission, the Planning Commission two had voiced opposition, but
I ... they asked me to go and speak to those two individuals and, and try to work things out on a
neighbor to neighbor basis. And I'm very pleased to report, I was able to work that out and when
both of my neighbors understood what was going on there now, an agreement, and have no
problems with the project.
So the other thing about having a, a fire hydrant and fire protection and we're working on that,
and I have Doug Gomes here to speak about our plans, and I've enlisted Doug Gomes of
Engineering Dynamics to help do the drawings and the engineering, and Jimmy Rust is the
contractor, an approved contractor that has agreed to put the fire hydrant.
So we've .. .I
any questions?
CHAIR CARROLL: We'll

addressed all

Issues

were brought

you.

you back later.

MR. SWORD: Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Loudermilk.
MS. LOUDERMILK: Good afternoon, Commissioners [sic]. Before you today we have an application
for a Conditional Pernlit for a 2.09-acre parcel which houses, which contains Dr. Sword's house.
The land uses are State Agricultural District, Community Plan Agriculture by the
Makawao-Puka ... , Pukalani, excuse me, and Kula Community Plan, and zoned Agriculture. The
project is not located within the Special Management Area.
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The applicant proposes to establish and operate a psychologist office in the State Agricultural
District. As the doctor indicated, this would be an adjunct office. He is proposing to convert a
recently constructed family room and study to operate these offices, this office in addition to
using the yard for the horse therapy and the dogs. Proposed hours of operation are from
8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Monday, Wednesday, and Friday. In addition to the applicant, there
will be one full-time staff and one part-time staff in the office. A total of eight parking stalls are
provided. The proposed office will allow the applicant to augment his Central Maui clinical
practice of the past 17 years at Wakea Gardens, Hale Makua, and Maui Memorial Hospital. And
as the doctor indicated, the proposed location mainly will allow for the establishment of the
animal-assisted therapy, and that it'll also provide a calm setting for those clients who ... may
prefer a rural type setting than having to come down to Kahului, try to find parking at the
hospital as well as Wakea Gardens before going in.
The public hearing on this application was on December 13, 2005. There were seven people
who testified in support of the proposed projects. There were two letters received against the
proposed project, and we received this after the report was completed. So we discussed 'em at
the, at the public hearing by the Commission. And those are the two letters in which Dr. Sword
talked about going back to those two neighbors to ... address their concerns. One, I know one
letter had to do with parking on the side of the road in relation to construction occurring on the
property. However, before that letter was received by the Department, the letter writer did not
even contact Dr. Sword to let him know that it was a problem. So since that time Dr. Sword,
once Dr. Sword was aware that was occurring, he talked to his contractors and they, they have all
parked on the property since then. And then for the other person, also who lived down the street,
had to deal more with the ... understanding the, the nature and the scope of the business
operation, and that was taken care of by Dr. Sword.
The recommendation from the Maui Planning Commission to the Council was approval subject
to conditions, a total of six conditions. And that concludes the Department's report at this time.
Public
CARROLL:
you, Ms. Loudermilk. We will now have
your
testimony is now open.
your name is called, please come to
name at the podium so we make sure we have the right name for the record. You have
minutes.
three minutes, you'll be notified you have one minute to conclude.
if anybody
in the audience at this time has any cell phones or pagers or any other electronic equipment,
please tum it off or put it to the silent mode. Thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The first testifier on this item is Agapito Sarmiento, to be followed by Fred Ruge .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. SARMIENTO: Good afternoon all you Councilmen and women. I'm Agapito Sarmiento. I
represent the ... part of the Maui, this is just a small fraction of the veterans, and I'd like to ask
them to please stand so that they can be recognized. Would you guys all stand, please?
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Note:

Short pause while members of the audience stood up.

MR. SARMIENTO: Some of these veterans ... Rick, I believe ... Rick. .. Rick, I believe he, he represent
one of--the guy in the back, Dr. Sword--he represent the 442, his dad ...
MR. SWORD (from the audience): Charles.
MR. SARMIENTO: ... Charles, his dad 442, who has just gone home to the lord, and is always active
with us. Thank you, Charles. This is a small fraction of the veterans. We're here to support
Dr. Sword very much so, 100 percent, nothing less. Many of the people who has not faced what
we have gone through.. .(sigh) . .. we can go to Dr. Sword at his place, bring up things that we
will not tell our family 'cause we can't, we're, we're afraid, we're scared how we also will act or
how people will respond to us. If my wife was here, she would testify, she would tell you she
live a horrible life with me. But if wasn't for her, her strength, her understanding and telling me
that I need to go to seek--it was over 20-something years I fight this. Many of us, we do not
believe that we have this certain issue in us. 'Cause when we left this island, we went there
voluntarily believing, believing our Constitution, believing the Bill, Bill of Rights, independence.
We believe in the freedom that we all enjoy, the liberty. We went there to volunteer, not knowing
that we were not going to come back or some of us not coming back, and we didn't much care
about that. .. not knowing that we wasn't, not going to come back with victory in our hearts, but
we came back to face humiliation. But we understand that many did not understand either why
our brothers and sisters got spit on. So that's sort of kind of a whole, a lot of the issues in us not
to speak out because when we do, if someone doesn't understand, we're afraid that we might just
get off the handle and do something to that individual. We're that fearful of ourself, we're
fearful for others. When Dr. Sword came into our life, he's one person that we can say that he
love and he knows ... and when he speaks, we listen and we do. But he have a certain place
now-MS.

Three minutes.

MR. SARMIENTO:
we can go to, where we feel
we're at
back Nam because of
the foliage,
beautiful horse
has, the animals. We
so safe, so peaceful, serenity, so
tranquility. If you go to my home now, it's fun
plants and foliage. My wife's going crazy,
she can't find me at times. So does my, my grandchild. I'm in all this foliage because I find
peace and calmness. So when I go out and go do ... with my wife go shopping, like many of my
brothers here, we feel some peace when we leave. But we can't stand too long in the public area
'cause we're always watching our back. We know there's people out there is crazy, taking all
this type of thing, and we might just lose it on them, too, if they react to us a certain way. But
Dr. Sword has a perfect place for us.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
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MR. SARMIENTO: We will travel distance to go to his place. That's why we find peace and love and
someone that understand us, really cares, who sacrifice his families, the time with his
family... so that he will put his, his sacrifice, his time with us seven days a week, even 24 hours
day. We call him at midnight, mornings, odd hours ...he, he will never hesitate to say come or I
will come to you. So to the Council Members and all of you that is, has the control, who dictate
our livelihood, who now enjoys the liberty that many men and women have gone to a foreign
country...where my two nephews has gone to Iraq and now they have returned safely, thank
God-MS. NAKATA: Five minutes.
MR. SARMIENTO: So, I say this to you. Please do not hesitate, please do not delay no longer 'cause
many of us is not going to see tomorrow, 'cause some of us has disease that is unbearable.
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you very much.
Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Fred Ruge, to be followed by Charles Takahashi.
MR. RUGE: My name is Fred Ruge, and I'd like to thank Mr. Chairman and the Council Members for
allowing me to speak. I'm a veteran, but I'm also speaking in behalf of Dr. Sword's animal
therapy. A lot of people aren't aware of the fact that he's recognized nationally on the cutting
edge of anim ... , animal therapy, and he's created an oasis of tranquility where children can come
up there with his horse and his dogs and the chickens, and they can relax and emotionally
express themselves where they, they can't do that in a regular office because they freeze up. And
so he's recognized by his peers and by many Federal and State agencies and is being on the
cutting edge of animal therapy. And so I'm speaking on that behalf. And then to close, I'd like
to say as a veteran I think that most veterans on Maui consider
Sword the guardian angel of
veterans on Maui. Thank you.
Any

none,

Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next and last testifier who signed up on this item is Charles Takahashi.
MR. TAKAHASHI: My name is Charles Takahashi. I'm the son of Suguru Takahashi. I took over for
my father, I'm now the president of I Company and I represent the 442nd vets, and the 442nd vets
support Dr. Sword 100 percent of the ... all the way, 100 percent. They say a picture is worth a
thousand words. Okay. Jo Anne, Joe, Charmaine, later on I'm going to leave you these pictures
over here. This is the ben ... , benefit that we had. You know the two generals that came
here--General Bramlett who's in charge of half a million soldiers and Shinseki was in charge of
everything. I coordinated these pictures. This is the 442 guys on Maui, this just a small portion
of 442 guys on Maui ... this is Dr. Sword--and I coordinated these pictures. Dr. Sword is very
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special. So, I had Dr. Sword take a picture with the two generals. My father is, I guess, I would
say pretty popular in Maui. Charmaine, you probably know my father; Joe, you probably know
my father; and, Jo Anne, I know you know my father. Okay. He trusted Dr. Sword. Here's a
picture, okay, at that benefit. And you see the statue over there? It cost a lot of money, about
two ... a couple thousand dollars. They could only make one for the Nisei Veterans
Memorial--they made him. He was one ofthe eight guys, one ofthe eight guys that survived one
of the ten greatest battles in history, the Rescue of the Texas Lost Battalion. Okay.
. . .My father passed away on March 2nd . These are the number of veterans who came to his
funeral. This is the most I've ever seen in about 20 years. They supported. And my father
would never have gotten his compensation if wasn't for Dr. Sword. I brought 30 to 40
442 veterans in the system and many of them have, already have 100 percent, and the wives and
the, and the children come and hug Dr. Sword and say thank you, thank you so much. Okay.
. . .At my father's funeral I only had a handful of people speak, one of 'em was Dr. Sword, and
the reason why I did that is the day--oh, hi, Dain; he knows my father, too--the day before my
father passed away he thanked one person that. . .just out of the clear blue sky, and I couldn't
figure out why he said that. He said, thank you, Dr. Sword. Now I, now I know why because
after that. .. the 442 people that we put in the system, they started to get all of their 100 percent
and upgraded. I couldn't even believe the job that he's done.
Now what he wants to do is build some kind of a facility in Makawao. I think some of you, you
Council Members over here should go to his current office which is next to that Dan Waki's
place--you know, that laundromat?--okay, take a look at that-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. TAKAHASHI: --and then take a look at his facilities in Pukalani. . . .I have pictures over here of
the facility in Pukalani, and we had an event and there was 75--if we really wanted to try, we
could get 300 or 400 guys to come and support
Sword--there was 75. You can take a look at
see 442 members, you see Korean veterans, you see Vietnam veterans, and
course
later on you're going to see the golf--what is that?--the Iraq war,
going to start coming.
Now would you rather be, you know, where the current office is, you know,
these people
PTSD? My father had nightmares every night, yelling and screaming, all of that. Dr. Sword's
facility in Pukalani is very relaxing for people with PTSD. Okay. So that's-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. TAKAHASHI: Do I have one minute? ... How long do I have?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MR. TAKAHASHI: Am I, am I done?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Four minutes. Your time is up.
MR. TAKAHASHI: Time is up, okay. Pass the pictures. I want the pictures back. ... (chuckle) . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS: .. .(chuckle) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Any, any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you very much.
And .. .let the record show Mr. Kane has joined us. Thank you, Mr. Kane .... We have no one
else signed up to give testimony at this time. Is there anyone else that wishes to give testimony
on this agenda item, or if there's anyone here for another agenda item, cannot wait for that item
to come up, you can come forward now. Please identify yourself at the microphone and after
you finish speaking, please go sign a form so we can have it for the record.
MR. SKAGGERBERG: It's an honor to be here today in front of many people I know here. Mitch
Skaggerberg, Vietnam Veterans of Maui County, Board of Directors. One thing that hasn't been
mentioned that I think is very important for the adjunct office up in Pukalani ... the VA paid me
to see Dr. Sword for nine years, and one of the things I noticed, there's many times I could not
get downtown because I was in such a bad shape, bad shape to drive, bad shape to even get out
of the house, and if he would have had his office up there--I had to cancel a fair amount of
appointments ... so I, I .. .'cause I live Up country for 16 years. So that would've helped me
'cause I would've been maybe 5, 10 minutes away or in Kula, when I was Kula, 15, and I
could've had my therapy; and what that did for me is that means I had to sit by myself
sometimes for a day or two .. .in pretty bad shape, and my wife had to write letters about that, my
former wife. So all the veterans now that he's seeing I know would really, that would be very
helpful for them because they wouldn't have to miss appointments. And, and there was times
where I had to ...Dr. Sword, when he came after work, would actually see me separately, but he
couldn't do that very often. So that's another bit of testimony I think is very important to, to
approve this, and it's good to see you again. That's it.
CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier?
none, thank you. Anyone
else wish to give testimony at
time? Seeing
no objections, we
close public
testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed .
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel, do you have any comment before I open the floor to the
Members?
MR. GIROUX: No comment, Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have with us, of course, Mr. Foley and those before you. We also
have Michael Miyamoto, Director. .. Deputy Director of Public Works; we have Arnold Imaye,
Planner, Resource Planning Division, Department of Water Supply; Mr. Martin, Captain Martin,
Department of Fire and Public Safety; and, of course, there was the ... oh, I can't even remember
his name right now for the one that was taking care of the water--Mr. Gomes is also available for
comment if anyone wishes to bring him down. With nothing further, I will tum over the time to
the Members. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Mr. Chairman, thank you. I'd like to just ask Planning
Department representative or perhaps Fire Department. Are the plans proceeding now going to
address and take care of the water, the fire flow requirements for this project?
CHAIR CARROLL: If the Fire Department could come forward.
MR. MARTIN: Ms. Tavares, since it's a County water system, we defer all the requirements to the
Department of Water. So the Department of Water would be able to comment on that. If it's a
private water system, then we would get involved in the requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So you don't get involved with the fire flow requirements?
MR. MARTIN: Not when it's on a County water system-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. MARTIN: --provide by the, by the County system.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Is there someone who can answer for the Water
Department?
CARROLL:

we do have. Please identify yourself at

microphone.

IMAYE: My
Imaye,
the
Resources
of the Department of Water Supply.
was a meeting between
owner, Dr. Sword, and our
Director and engineering staff, and in that meeting they decide through the fire flow calculations
that were submitted by Engineering Dynamics that a 1,250 gpm, or gallons per minute, was
required. The 6-inch water line fronting the property can only provide about 1,000 gpm. So
there were two alternatives put forward. One was to install an 8-inch line off the 12-inch line to
the property to include a fire hydrant. The other alternative was to install a fire hydrant off the
12-inch line at the intersection of Makani Road and Ahuwale Place, and to my understanding
what was decided on was the latter to install a fire hydrant at the intersection of the 12-inch water
line. And at this time, our Engineering Division is awaiting plans for the fire hydrant from the
owner and Engineering Dynamics.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Will other.. .if they go the fire hydrant, they're going to go the fire
hydrant option and will this fire hydrant be serving other properties besides Dr. Sword's?
MR. IMAYE: If it is off the 12-inch line, it would.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And who is bearing the cost ofthe, the fire hydrant?
MR. IMAYE: The owner.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The one owner, Dr. Sword?
MR. IMAYE: Dr. Sword.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
Planning Department some, a question.

So now with the Planning, if I can ask the

CHAIR CARROLL: And for the Committee Members' information, we have a letter from Engineering
Dynamics Corporation of May 24, 2006 in your binder that addresses the fire hydrant and the
installation of that and the backflow preventor.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: If, in may ask Ms. Loudermilk a question?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Ms. Loudermilk, based on what the engineer is saying that the plans
still need to be submitted, is this Conditional Permit premature or is that, is it okay because it's
going to be ... or is it a condition of, of the Conditional Permit?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Loudermilk.
. .I am looking

MS.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.

you could

me find that, I could--

MS. LOUDERMILK: Yeah. . . . (chuckle). .. As part of the Department's .. .--(CHANGE OF
TAPE)--. .. that would be behind the Department's report in the packet.
Note:

Pause.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES; That's the one dated December 19th that's toward the back of the
packet?
MS. LOUDERMILK: I believe so.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's the letter to Dr. Sword-MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --regarding the State Land Use Commission's Special Use-MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes, December 19,2005.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes, that is and that is page no. 3.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Page 3.
MS. LOUDERMILK: Thank you. On project specific Condition No.8, the condition that's part of the
Special Use Permit-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MS. LOUDERMILK: --is that the applicant shall construct water improvements to meet the fire
protection requirements of the Department of Water Supply. As part of the Conditional Permit
bill before you, one of the conditions ... specifies that the conditions of the Special Use Permit,
all of those conditions are also incorporated into, into the Conditional Permit.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you. That clarifies it for me.
MS. LOUDERMILK: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Only by accident I
MS.
COUNCILMEMBER

it now, too,

we're all looking for

I appreciate

. . . (chuckle). ..

you, Chair.

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon, Ms. Loudermilk.
Can I ask. .. the Department recommended a two-year Conditional Permit. Can I ask why two
and not three, five?
MS. LOUDERMILK: First time coming in, allows us to review some of the project specific conditions,
such as the, the water improvements to ensure that they are done and we have an opportunity to
review and make sure that they're in compliance. So initially we started off with one year, but
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we decided in this case let's go to two years. When we come back after the two years, the option
for a longer period of time is there. However... as this is the first request, should, should the
Council grant it, the two years, we believe, will allow sufficient time to meet some of the
additional requirements for the building, the building and operation to meet certain County Code
requirements, such as the water.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Would ... do you believe the Department would have concerns if the
Council decided or the body decided today to maybe adjust the Conditional Permit to say three
years, possibly four?
MS. LOUDERMILK: We'd have no concerns at all.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Further discussion? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd like to speak with the guy from the Water Department, if I
could.
CHAIR CARROLL: Please identify yourself at the microphone.
MR. IMAYE: Arnold Imaye, Planner with the Water Resources and Planning Division of the
Department of Water Supply.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Imaye. I, I didn't catch the actual calculation that
you quoted. I was having a hard time hearing you; I don't think you had the mic down. Could
you repeat what you told Member Tavares?
MR. IMAYE: The calculat. .. ,
gallons

flow calculations that were decided
be
flow prc.tec:tlO:O.

was 1,250 gpm or 1,250

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that contradicts what the Department wrote to ..
review of this project. This is Exhibit 5 to the application or rather to the report.
MR. IMAYE: Does that quote 2,000?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes.
MR. IMAYE: Okay... 2,000 was used as, as a general, I guess, comment that we do for most
commercial projects. But the final calculations still determine what the actual fire flow should
be.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
operation?

So there's kind of a genenc fire flow for any commercial

MR. IMAYE: Yes, but in this case a different source was used to calcu ... , to finalize the calculations.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: " .Are you going to tell me what that source is or... ? I mean how
did you arrive at that? Do you use square footage, you know, what, what's the basis for that
determination?
MR. IMAYE: I'm not an engineer so I can't. . .I'm, I'm not certified to probably answer that question as
far as the calculation, the final calculations go.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, you know, if, if we're not depending on the existing fire flow
and as I understand it now the decision is to put in a fire hydrant, has anyone tested the lines to
see that the fire hydrant will, will be able to produce the fire flow necessary as far as pressure?
MR. IMAYE: You're speaking of the 12-inch water line? ... To my knowledge, oh, I'm not sure when
it was last tested, but I can find out when it was tested last.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: So the information that you read to us that was ... who ...who gave
you that information?
MR. IMAYE: The calculations were provided by Engineering Dynamics to our Engineering Division.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion before the Chair gives his recommendation? Hearing
none ...the Chair will entertain a motion to recommend passage on first reading of the revised
proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE GRANTING RICHARD W.", excuse
me, "RICHARD M. SWORD, PH.D., INC.
CONDITIONAL PERMIT
OPERATE A
PSYCHOLOGIST OFFICE WITHIN
COUNTY AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT FOR
SITUATED
MAKAWAO,
to
PONTANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Mr. Pontanilla.

Been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Molina.

Discussion?

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I just wanna... say something about the mental
health. As you know, I belong to the Mental Health Association Board here on Maui, and one of
the things that we talk about is, you know, how do we provide services to people with this
particular disease. And after hearing the testifiers, it pretty gives, it gives you a pretty good idea
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of what they go through everyday. So with that, you know, Chair, I'm happy to move forward as
far as this particular application or Conditional Permit for a psychologist office in Makawao.
And I just want to say thank you, Dr. Sword, for having an office in that area to service the
clients Upcountry. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I move to amend the permit duration from
two years to three years.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Molina, seconded by Ms. Tavares. Discussion? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. The reason, first of
all ... well, first, I appreciate the Planning Department already in showing leniency towards the
first-time applicant by going past their normal one year for first-time applicants to give them two
years. But taking into consideration the service being provided by Dr. Sword here and on to his
clients, I think this is something very worthwhile for the community and I see no harm in giving
the applicant an additional year for this permit, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you.
Planning Division.

I, I have a question for the Water Department,

CHAIR CARROLL: If you could please come back to the-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
sorry, I referred to you as an engineer earlier; you're a Planner,
right? If, you could come back here. My, my question is from the time that you get the plans
and they're approved,
long is it before the
is operational? We're
about

CARROLL:

again, please identify yourself at the

MR. IMAYE: Okay. Arnold Imaye, Planner with the Department of Water Supply. That I would have
to defer to the Engineering Division.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. IMAYE: I don't know the answer to that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. And, Mr. Chair, the reason that I asked the question is
that under the condition of this application, it's effective from the passage, the date of the
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passage of the ordinance. It may be--you know, I don't want to say a year--it may be a year
before the fire hydrant is actually installed, and I, I would like to see if there's a way that we can
change the wording so that it's, you know, tied somehow to the final approvals and installation
and operation of the fire hydrant, 'cause it wouldn't be quite fair to have this condition even at
three years if, ifthe fire hydrant cannot be installed in time .. .in a reasonable amount oftime.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares, if I could... Condition No.8 of the Special Use Permit has that the
applicant shall construct water improvements to meet the fire protection requirements of the
Department of Water Supply. Would that be sufficient to your concerns?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No. I'm referring to Condition No.2 in the Planning report-CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --it's the second page, and Condition 2 talks about the validity of the
permit and it. .. the, the clock starts-CHAIR CARROLL: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --when the ordinance is signed, and that could be I think a, like a
month from now. But it wouldn't, to me wouldn't be fair to the applicant if they, they get their
Conditional Permit, the clock starts ticking, but they can't really operate their business until
they've met that other Condition 8.
CHAIR CARROLL: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So that's what I'm trying to see ifthere's, ifthere's a way that we can
tie in the fire hydrant operationalization to starting the clock on the permit.
CARROLL: Do you
the--

any proposed wording or. .. ? We have the idea, but we

have

TAVARES: We have
idea. We probably could work on some
of, some
kind of wording. It might be here
No. 2 and "whichever is later" or something like that.
Maybe Ms. Anderson has something she wants to suggest at this time.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Could we have the
Fire Department representative come forward?
CHAIR CARROLL: And we do have a motion on the floor of extending the time period. Proceed.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah... and I, I. . .I think we're all going in the same direction
here. Hi.
MR. MARTIN: Hi. Good afternoon. Captain Martin with the Fire and Public Safety. Good afternoon,
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Captain Martin, for being here. So when a fire
hydrant is installed, then what is the procedure for the Fire Department to accept it or to approve
it? I mean, you know, a private entity just doesn't install a fire hydrant; they have to work with
you guys, correct?
MR. MARTIN: Actually, there's two answers to that. The first is if. . .in this particular case it is a
County water system, the water comes from the County system and the, and the hydrants are
located in a County right-of-way, it lies with the Board of, I mean the Department of Water
Supply to accept, do the inspections and, and accept it. The Fire Department does not get
involved at any time. In fact, we are only allowed to touch the fire hydrant in the performance of
our duties, in this case which would be at a working fire or during training.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.
MR. MARTIN: Other than that, it lies with the Department of Water. In certain cases where there's a
private water system--as many of us know, just as an example Kaanapali water, which is a
private system--that the Department of Water does not necessarily get involved with installing
pipes and hydrants, or even like a shopping mall, such as Kaahumanu. As soon as it comes off of
the County right-of-way and hydrants get installed within a shopping center in a private property,
the Fire Department does get involved, inspects the piping, and makes sure that it flows. So it
does get confusing and, and it's okay. I, I get confused. It took me awhile to figure it out, but
that's how we have it going right now. I think it works well for, for all of us, between the Water
Department and us.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So
up to
Department Water Supply to install the, the
hydrant or work
the private party who's taking on
expense to install
approve it
flush
system and do
to make it operational?
MR. MARTIN: In this particular case, yes, it would be with the Water Department at their discretion,
whether they do it themselves or if, if they allow a private. That's totally up to the Water
Department's ... however they decide what's acceptable.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So in that case, Mr. Chair, I would offer language and I think that
Condition No.2, which Member Molina has already amended from two years to three, we could
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change the language to say, that the Conditional Permit shall be valid for a period of three years
from the date ... of installation of the fire hydrant-MS. NAKATA: Excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --provide that an extension of this permit beyond this three-year
period may be granted pursuant to Section 19, blah, blah, blah.
MS. NAKATA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: One moment. Can we confer with Staff on that wording?
MS. NAKATA: We haven't had the vote yet on the motion to amend to extend the duration of the period
from two to three years. You may want to dispose of that first.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, what I'm trying to achieve, Mr. Chairman, is--I haven't
made a motion, I'm just offering language...
CHAIR CARROLL: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .in assistance to Ms. Tavares and, you know, I'm just throwing
that out there, you know. And I think that, you know, because it's the same condition that we're
amending, it would be helpful to do this all in, in one amendment. But if you want to do two
different amendments, that's fine too.
CHAIR CARROLL: We can very easily amend that main amendment and change the wording, so that's
not really a problem. But-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well,
intention. So ...

just passing this on to Ms. Tavares. It was her original

COUNCILMEMBER
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .I think
good checkpoint.

you know,

installation of the

hydrant is a

CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Mr. Kane, followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just very briefly, Mr. Chair. If we don't have any further discussion on
the three-year amendment, maybe we can vote on that, get back to the main motion and then deal
with language change. Much cleaner.
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection, the Chair will call for the vote--
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: --and then we can get back to the matter under discussion at this time. All those in
favor of the motion to amend to three years, please signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Kane, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair PontanilIa, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Hokama and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to the main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL: Back to the main motion as amended. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair, I'd like to ask a question of the Planning
Department, Ms. Loudermilk. Under Condition 8 in the Special Use Permit, it, it does ... how
does that work operationally?
the plan is approved, can, can Mr. Sword operate already the
is approved, not
fire hydrant installed?
hydrant

MS. LOUDERMILK: We would want to have
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.

MS. LOUDERMILK: We'd want to have some sort of documentation from the Department of Water
Supply that it has been installed and they have accepted it and it's now part of the County
system.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Then, Mr. Chair, I would like to offer an
amendment to the main motion as amended. I move to amend that Condition No.2, that we
insert after the first sentence, "effective date of this ordinance" by adding "or the date of the
acceptance of the fire hydrant, whichever is later".
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Molina.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
Discussion? Ms. Tavares.

It's been moved by Ms. Tavares, seconded by Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I, I think that given our construction business on this island,
that even if it's accepted and ready to go, it may be awhile before a contractor can actually
perfonn the work after the bidding, and that has to go through a bidding process and all of that.
So we're looking at, you know, three, four months before it even gets awarded perhaps. So, I
think that in, in fairness to the operations of this facility, that having it tied into when the fire
hydrant is accepted would be fairer to the, to the applicant than tying it into the date that the
ordinance is passed. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion on the amendment to the main motion?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson. Excuse me, Ms. Nakata, did you have something to add?
MS. NAKATA: Staff just wanted to inquire whether it should be made clear who would be accepting
the fire hydrant?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It would be, I would presume it's the Water, Department of Water
Supply.
CARROLL:

of Water Supply.

MS. NAKATA: So would
proposed amendment
inserting
"effective date
ordinance" Condition No.2, "or
date
acceptance of the fire hydrant by the Department
of Water Supply, whichever is later"?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's fine. That makes it clearer. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Did everyone hear that?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yep.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. So is there any objection to having that as the wording proposed by
Ms. Tavares?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Alright, further discussion on the motion? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. And I think that the ... Captain Martin verified for us that
that is what happens, is that the Department does accept the fire hydrant. I just wanted to thank
Member Tavares for catching that because that will make a big difference for Dr. Sword and, you
know, having a full three years use of his property for that purpose before he has to come back
in, because it could well be a year before the hydrant gets put in. So, I thank her for catching that
and I think it's a, a very good amendment.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Further discussion on the amendment on the floor?
Hearing none, all those in favor please signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Kane, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Hokama and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
APPROVE amendment to

main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL: We're back to the main motion as amended. Further discussion? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to clarify, Mr. Chair, because in--and this probably will
be with Ms. Loudermilk--on the December 19, 2005 communication from Planning, under the
State Land Use Commission, I just wanted to make sure that the language that we have inserted
because basically the standard condition there says, that the Land Use Commission Special Use
Permit shall be valid until December 31, 2007 or the expiration date of the Conditional Permit,
whichever occurs later, subject to further extensions by the Maui Planning Commission,
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et cetera. So, I just wanted to make sure that by us changing the language it doesn't interfere or
in any way compromise that particular condition.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Loudennilk.
MS. LOUDERMILK: Councilmember Johnson, the proposed amendments will not compromise that
condition.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I just wanted to state, too, that I think it's really a very
good use and a very innovative use of the property to actually incorporate a fanning operation in
a rural and an agricultural setting. Because, for me, I think that so many times we look at
traditional fanning operations and I think that this meets the purpose and intent ofHRS 205, but
it also affords an additional opportunity to actually allow that kind of activity to take place,
which with a horse or several horses and a dog or dogs, it may not always be possible to make a
living doing fanning. So, I think that this is a very good use of the property, a good example of
creative thinking, but also putting the people who are receiving the services in a setting that is
really conducive to them being more calm and being more relaxed and hopefully being able to
resolve their issues more quickly. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion? Mr. Molina, followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chainnan. And I echo the sentiments of my
colleague from West Maui with regards to Dr. Sword and the service that he's providing. I'djust
like to share with the Committee that Dr. Sword went through great lengths to meet with almost
everyone throughout the Makawao community to share with everyone what he's been doing and
try to accommodate any concerns that could come up with regards to traffic, fire protection,
et cetera. So, I just want to thank
Sword
his commitment and also to our veterans here
all that you've done
our
So, I wholeheartedly support
proposal,
Mr. Chainnan.
you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chainnan, I would like to applaud Dr. Sword in coming
forward with this kind of a program using animals as part of a, a treatment program because I
think we've seen through the years many studies that have shown ... or this is very successful,
and I know that even in some places they take different animals into the hospitals for children,
for tenninally ill patients and all that and it helps them very much. So, I think all the ... the
therapies using, you know, equine, canine, feline, bovine--anything with a "ine"-COUNCIL MEMBERS: " . (chuckle) . ..
- 21 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2006

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --you know, would help and I'm, I'm very happy to see this program
being promoted on Maui 'cause I do think it has a lot of benefits to everyone. Thank you.
Thank you, Mr., Dr. Sword.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I, too, want to weigh-in on this. This is real
forward thinking and ... well, I'd say three weeks to a month ago, I was on a plane from Oahu
and my seat mate was a psychologist for the Veterans Administration and he comes to Maui once
a week to deal with patients, and he told me that the veterans on Maui, and not unlike anywhere
else, have a real problem with post traumatic stress disorder and that this is an ongoing need that
they have for psychological care and services. And what Dr. Sword is doing here is going to be
such a great benefit to all these honorable men who have served our country. So, I
wholeheartedly support this and thank Dr. Sword for bringing these vets to his home and using
his home as a way to help ... soothe their ills so ... and to bring animals into it is wonderful.
So ... and I thank, thank him also for going out into the community on this because it makes our
job so much easier, Mr. Chairman. So thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further comment before we call for the question?
Hearing none, all those in favor ofthe motion as amended, please signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried unanimously.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Kane, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised proposed bill, and FILING of
communication.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Members, thank: you very much. I'm going to call for a five-minute recess before
we go to the next item, LU-53, Maui Central Park District (Wailuku). Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, forgive me. Was that the amendment that we just
voted on or was that the main motion?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: The main motion.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That was the main motion?
CHAIR CARROLL: That was the main motion.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank: you. Sorry.
MR. SARMIENTO (from the audience): We'd like to thank: everyone, all the Council Members, the
Staff-CHAIR CARROLL: Five-minute recess. .., (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

2:33 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:49 p.m.

ITEM NO. 53:

MAUl CENTRAL PARK DISTRICT (WAILUKU)

(C.c. No. 06-116)

CHAIR CARROLL: .. .(gavel). .. This Land Use Committee meeting of June 7th is now back in
session. Members, the next agenda item is LU-53, Maui Central Park District (Wailuku). The
Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 06-116, from Councilmember Charmaine
Tavares, transmitting the following: A draft bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
TO THE
AMENDING CHAPTER 19.27, MAUl COUNTY CODE,
CENTRAL PARK DISTRICT".
purpose
draft
is to amend Chapter 19.27, Maui
County Code, to allow, as accessory uses, restaurants and gift shop uses for cultural and
performing arts centers and for botanical gardens. A proposed resolution entitled "REFERRING
TO THE MAUl PLANNING COMMISSION A DRAFT BILL TO AMEND CHAPTER 19.27,
MAUl COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO MAUl"... "RELATING TO THE MAUl CENTRAL
PARK DISTRICT". The purpose of the proposed resolution is to transmit the draft bill to the
Maui Planning Commission.
We have this moming[sic] ... since this is a bill that's been generated by the Council, I'll ask the
Department at this time to give a presentation ... or we will ask Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: .. .(chuckle) . ..
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CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares, if you could please address that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I saw this look of horror on Mr. Foley's face .... (chuckle) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Surprises.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you for bringing this forward
for consideration. What prompted me to do this ... or offer this was that the Conditional Use
Permit that has been coming forward to us every five years or whatever from the Arts & Cultural
Center was about this, and each time we've discussed it when it came up we talked about
changing it so that, that it would be a permitted use and ... finally, you know, just said okay this is
it, we gotta do it this year, and I, I'm happy to, to introduce it. I think this makes a lot of sense
and the Arts & Cultural Center... and we all know what that Cultural Center has brought to Maui
and to our community here by what's offered there and how huge that project is and to, you
know, say they're going to do something within five years, it takes a lot longer to plan these
kinds of things out, especially at the magnitude that would be, I think, coexisting with the, the
facilities that are there. We just can't put up a little snack shop at the .. .--(CHANGE OF
TAPE)-- . .. those of us who have gone there and enjoyed the pre-event or post-event food service
there that's done kind of on a temporary basis, and I think it could be a much more efficient
operation if it were in a permanent type facility or at least a kitchen was there. So, I'd like to, to
introduce this so that the Arts & Cultural Center can proceed with their plans as their timing
allows rather than force them back in every five years or whatever to go before the Planning
Commission, come before us, and the Planning Department has to generate a report and all of
this kind of thing. So these, the resolution is to, to pass it over to the Maui Planning Commission
for their review and comment, and I would ask the Members to support it.
Regarding the Maui Nui Botanical Gardens area, I included that in the bill because I think from
the beginning when the Maui Nui Botanical Gardens was presenting their conceptual master plan
to both the Parks Department and to, I think, the, this body, there always was a plan to include a
gift shop, snack shop kind of thing for the, the visitors who ...well, visitors and residents who
visit the Maui Nui Botanical Gardens, and I'd like to give
that or see that they have that
having to come back
Conditional Use
same ability to go forward and
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Does the Planning Department have any comment at this
time?
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, we have no objection to the, the Committee sending this bill to the Maui
Planning Commission.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. I will now open public testimony. Public testimony is now open.
Anyone giving testimony, please give your name at the podium. You have three minutes, at
which time you will be notified, with one minute to conclude. Ms. Nakata.
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MS. NAKATA: The first testifier is Art Vento, to be followed by Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. VENTO: Mr. Chainnan, Members of the Council, I just want to briefly thank you for your, your
vision and your foresight. As we all know, your days are busy, everybody's got quite a, quite a
load on their plate and to, to take the time to go ahead and put this forward so that we're not,
we're not doing a dance every five years is, is .. .is very much commendable. And I would also
like to thank you in tenns of. .. ofthe support you've given the Arts & Cultural Center on the big
picture as to exactly what we do in the long-range process under. .. , and understand that staff
resources are an incredible .. .is one of your hugest assets, both in tenns of the Planning
Department, in tenns of your own, your own staff. So this basically clears up the ability for us to
do long-range planning and, and move forward. Mahalo.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Lisa Schattenburg-Rayrnond.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Aloha, Council Members. I'm Lisa Schattenburg-Rayrnond, the
Executive Director of the Maui Nui Botanical Gardens, and also mahalo, Councilmember
Tavares, for her "forward thinking"--I like that phrase that Michelle used earlier--to include the
Botanical Garden in this resolution, and we're looking forward to ... doing our long-tenn lease
and hopefully you will see that before the end of this year, and then this will really help us with
our future planning also. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any... (cleared throat). .. excuse me, any questions for the testifier?
None. Thank you very much.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, no one else has signed up to testify on this item.
anyone that wishes to give testimony at this
CHAIR CARROLL: Is
Hearing none, ifthere's no objection, we
close

on

agenda

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel, do you have anything that you would like to bring forward
before I open the floor?
MR. GIROUX: No, Chair. Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: The floor is now open. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. First, I want to thank Member Tavares for bringing
this forward. I, I do have questions to see if this is the best option and I, and I think: the idea is
right, but just to, to make sure that it doesn't do something that's unanticipated or, or create a
situation later on that we may not anticipate. As an example, because we're dealing with the
Central Park District area which the metes and bounds are, are set out for us--Kaahumanu
Avenue, Kanaloa Avenue, Kahului Beach Road, and Maui Community College--and because we
don't have specific language referencing the MACC as well as the Maui Nui Botanical Garden,
does this open it up for.. .if we're not aware of it and somebody in the future, say 10, 15, 20
years from now we develop a component of the Central Park area for a, a use, they're going to
corne forward and ask for a use, they won't have to say these things because it's already there,
and then they're able to use this as an accessory use if it's within the confines of cultural,
performing arts, and botanical uses. So that's, that's my concern, that we're not opening it up to
a situation where later on somebody comes in, applies, doesn't talk about restaurant, gift shop
uses, but is applying for a use from a piece of the Central Park area, whether it's where the old
zoo is or some other portion that is not currently being utilized or planned for some sort of use;
that we would have something here that would open the door for them to also do restaurant and
gift shop use or a commercial component within the park. So, I don't know if Corp. Counsel can
just provide us with some comment there.
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel.
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, I had the same concern when this was discussed at the Planning
Commission initially, and I can assure Mr. Kane that we will take a look at that issue to see if it,
the language needs to be tightened up or if we can use the lease process to, to control perhaps
future uses. But we, we will take a look at that issue when this goes before the Planning
Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Kane, please continue.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No. So, as an example, the way it's worded now... someplace like the
YMCA wouldn't be able to, without asking, put a gift shop or a restaurant because it's limited to
the cultural, performing art, and botanical uses only? That's a parameter that's being set up? So,
I'm just asking to see ifthere's confirmation to that. And not that I don't want them to, but what
I don't want them to do is do something that hasn't been discussed and agreed upon. That's my
point. So since there's an existing, functioning facility there with a swimming pool, with a gym,
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with, you know, with... with, with a working facility, would they be able to expand based on this
language? I think it doesn't, but I, I ask the question because I may be wrong.
CHAIR CARROLL: Uh-huh. I would hope that when this does go to the Planning Commission, that
due to your remarks they pay particular attention to that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Would, would-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Foley.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --would Mr. Foley be able to respond at this point as well?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah. Mr. Foley.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just based on the language that's currently there and-MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, we, we haven't really analyzed the, the language yet, but I can assure you
that we will and, and take a look at whether or not it should be related to the zoning district or the
uses that are already there and, you know, eventually I guess we'll, we'll have to get some
direction from the Council as to whether or not you had the intention of having it for the entire
Central Park District or just for these two existing uses. But we, we will analyze that when it
goes to the, to the Planning Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for my opportunity.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Anderson, followed by Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Does anybody know ... ? I'm assuming this
property is owned by the County and that we're leasing it out.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
entities.

--and, and so we're leasing portions of this district to various

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: So, I think it would be difficult for anybody to do anything beyond
what the lease is and what the lease provides them. So it's not like anybody can just go in and
buy this property and build something on it because it's now a permitted use. So maybe if the
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Director could look into the language of the leases that are issued on this property, that would be
helpful. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, you know, just to clarify for Mr. Foley as, as to what my
understanding is, is this would be existing uses as are they are currently, and if something could
be put in the ordinance that basically refers to, even if it's this period of time, as of such and such
a date, you know, or that were established prior to the date that the ordinance was actually
amended... some, some language inserted in there that it is existing activities related to either the
Botanical Garden or the Cultural & Arts Center. Because, basically, I share Mr. Kane's concerns.
I don't want something years down the road to all of a sudden.. .I, I guess take advantage of
what could potentially be a loophole. That's not to say that at times when we have carnivals or
special events or other things where there are vendors that do sell I think hotdogs, and I don't
know if there's a little hotdog stand that we operate in one of the areas, but I know on occasion
we have had some beverages or food served. So, I don't see a problem with that, Mr. Chair, but I
just. . .I think that it should be very clear that this is what our vision is for that area. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: You wish comment from Mr. Foley at this time or-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I just made the comment so that when the minutes are taken to
the Planning Commission, that he is at least aware of where my, my mind is at at this point in
time. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
Mr. Pontanilla.

Further discussion?

Ms. Tavares, followed by

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, thank you. At the time that I was looking into this, I did have
some conversations about how best to address what it is I thought we might consider as
appropriate. And I still think and, you know, and I think we had talked about it, that I wanted to
name the organizations specifically, the
Arts & Cultural Center
the Maui Nui Botanical
Gardens, but it came out
generally it would've been better by
this. So that's
still, that's still up for grabs and if the Planning Commission feels that we should or that, that it
would be better for us to name them specifically, I don't see a problem with that.
fact, I, I
think that really closes all the loopholes. Then if anyone wants to do an operation and wants to
be added to the list, they'll have to come back here for an ordinance amendment. So that would
preclude just, you know, anybody saying oh, well, now we can have our restaurant and gift shop,
because that's not the intention, and I don't think we can use a, you know, prior to a certain date
because I think the YMCA has been there for, for quite a while and the Boys and Girls Club and
this kind of thing; and, and this area is, I think, under also the purview of the Parks Department
and that any kind of concessions that they may have for either the athletic fields, the recreational
areas, or even the existing lessees would have to come through and get approval by the Parks
Department.

- 28

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2006

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. My only concern is the ...how it's defined as, you
know, being bordered by different avenues and streets. You, you take a greater area rather than
the Central Maui Park itself...maybe that can be somehow redefined to make it more tight.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Well, the--Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. When the appropriate time is to recognize, I
would assume Member Tavares--you know, I think this is a good thing, that we need to do that
and I think it's the direction that this body has taken towards trying to get away from doing the
CUPs and the SUPs and the, you know, the returns and the, the workload, et cetera. But
ultimately this body is going to set that policy and we're going to take to heart and put good
thought to the recommendations of the Planning Commission in this case. So, I'm glad that
Members have, you know, given some additional comment to the Planning Department and the
Director to take to the Planning Commission for their thoughts. But, again, it comes back to us.
I don't think--well, I haven't anyway, so I'll speak for myself. I haven't taken a position on what
my intent is as one of nine Members what's going to show up 20 years from now in this Central
Park area because, you know, it's going to evolve obviously, and so we want to be as clear as
possible and clear and yet broad--I don't know if that makes sense--but provide that broadness
of, of opportunity, but be clear on what our intent is. And ultimately when it gets back to us,
we'll be able to do that. So at the appropriate time I'll be making my comments to support this.
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Further discussion? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair,just one more thing. Ifwhen it goes to the Planning
Commission, if the Corporation Counsel and the Planning Department can look at further
refinement of the definition of this Central Park area, 'cause it just list the streets. But if they
could add
there the compass direction so that it's like the north border or south borders Kaahumanu Avenue,
east borders - Kanaloa, the west border, so
it's real clear that it's
unt·h," that block. I
those of us who are familiar with
area know, and you
to say
Maui Community College because part of that block where the dorms are belongs to Maui
Community College. So it's that little ... where the dorms are belongs to the college, the road
goes right through the middle of that and, you know, until the dorms gets moved or the, the road
gets moved we might, you know, add to some .. .it might give more definite directions because
Kaahumanu Avenue goes all the way and Kahului Beach Road goes all the way down. So, you
know, is Harbor Lights part of it, or the retention basin in front of the parking lot at Maui
Community College part of it? So, I think it would help to at least get the compass directions in,
in there as, as identifying the roads that border, since it doesn't have the legal metes and bounds
in this ordinance.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion on the motion on the floor? Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: There's no motion.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: There's no motion on the floor.
CHAIR CARROLL: Excuse me, we don't have a motion on the floor yet. The Chair is trying to rush
things. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Just to extend on what Charmaine is talking
about. I think, you know, with the GIS capabilities we have, we should have a map to actually,
you know, a visual to show what, what we're doing here along with whatever buildings that are
already erected so that it's real easy to see this is what we're adopting and this is the area. Thank
you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion before the Chair gives his recommendation? Hearing
none... (sigh) . .. the Chair will entertain a motion to adopt the proposed resolution entitled
"REFERRING TO THE MAUl PLANNING COMMISSION A DRAFT BILL TO AMEND
CHAPTER 19.27, MAUl COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO THE MAUl CENTRAL PARK
DISTRICT".
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So move.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Ms. Tavares, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla. And the Members will
note that I did not include filing of this communication because it will be coming back to us and
then it can be attached to the existing LU-53 item. Ms. Tavares, as the maker of the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No further discussion. I, I think that getting to this ... situation,
however it ends up as far as how it's described, will make it a lot better for all of us, and people
will know where they stand and how far
can go and what's permitted and not permitted.
Thank you.
CARROLL: Any further discussion to
the
please signify by saying aye.

on

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried unanimously.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Kane, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Hokama and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

ITEM NO. 39:

Recommending ADOPTION of proposed resolution.

CONDITIONAL PERMIT TIME EXTENSION
RECLAMATION FACILITY (MAKENA) (C.c. No. 06-33)

FOR

A

WATER

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, moving along ... our last item of the day, Land Use Item
39, a Conditional Permit time extension for a water reclamation facility in Makena... .(cleared
throat). .. Excuse me. The Committee in receipt of the following: County Communication No.
06-33, from the Planning Director, transmitting a proposed bill to grant a request from Roy
Figueiroa, on behalf of Makena Resort Corporation, for a Conditional Permit time extension for
the continued operation of a water reclamation facility loaded [sic], located within the Makena
Resort, Makena, Maui, until the water reclamation facility use ceases to exist. The proposed bill
also grants a transfer of the permit from Makena Resort Corporation to Makena Wastewater
Corporation. By correspondence dated May 10, 2006, from the Department of the Corporation
Counsel, transmitting a revised proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2734 (1998) TO EXTEND A CONDITIONAL PERMIT TO
ALLOW
CONTINUED OPERATION OF A WATER RECLAMATION
AND
IMPROVEMENTS
COUNTY AGRICULTURAL
ON
this
PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED
MAKENA, MAUL, HAWAII", and the purpose
revised proposed bill,
course, is to grant the
extension and transfer
Conditional
Permit as requested.
If the applicant could come forward. We have five minutes for the applicant and then we will
hear from the Department, and then we will have public testimony.
MS. OHASHI HIRAGA: Good afternoon, Chairman Carroll and Members of the Land Use Committee.
My name is Gwen Hiraga representing the applicant, Makena Resort Corp. and Makena
Wastewater Corp. We don't have a formal presentation this afternoon. It's a request just to
extend an existing Conditional Permit for the Makena Water Reclamation Facility and to, as the
Chair mentioned, to transfer the permit holder from Makena Resort Corp. to Makena Wastewater
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Corp. Roy Figueiroa from Makena Resort Corp. and John Oka from Makena Wastewater Corp.
are both in attendance and are available to respond to any questions the Committee Members
may have, and I also understand that the Department is prepared to give their overview as well.
So that's it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. The Department, Ms. Cua.
MS. CUA: Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee, the .. .just a little background. The original
Conditional Permit granted by the Council for the water reclamation facility was granted by
Ordinance 2734 on December 16, 1998. The facility was constructed, the construction, I believe,
began in 2002 and completed in 2003. At the start of today's meeting, I, I distributed a
photograph to the Members, which was provided us by the applicant, of the actual facility as it
exists today. When the Council originally granted that permit in 1998, it was subject to six
conditions. The applicant, towards the close of the expiration of that permit, filed a time
extension of the Conditional Permit and they also filed a request to transfer the permit holder
from Makena Resort Corporation to Makena Wastewater Corporation. Makena Wastewater
Corporation is a licensed public utility company, which is an affiliate corporation of Makena
Resort Corporation, which is the original permit holder. In addition to the photograph that was
distributed, I, I guess there was some question about the ownership of the property, and so also
distributed to you this afternoon was the original Conditional Permit application which was filed
back in 1997 for the property, showing the owner as Ainamua Corporation and as well as an
authorization letter from the property owner to Makena Resort Corporation--that was one of the
entities who, who that actually was the applicant. And so hopefully that, you know, clarifies that
issue. In addition, you also got distributed another authorization letter from the applicant which
further authorizes Makena Wastewater Corporation to process any applications regarding the
wastewater, excuse me, the water treatment facility, and that was also granted from the property
owner, Ainamua Corporation.
Maui Planning Commission reviewed the applicant's request for extension of the permit as
well as the transfer permit holder on October 25,2005. There was no testimony in support or
in opposition to the request. In addition, the Department received no written testimony on the
matter. The
Commission voted to approve the
extension
Conditional
as well as the transfer
permit holder as recommended by the Department, and they did
recommend changes to the original conditions of approval. And if you refer to the bill ...relative
to Condition No.2, originally you granted the Conditional Permit for a period of five years. The
Commission recommended that the Conditional Permit be valid until the Makena water
reclamation facility use ceases to exist. The Department does understand that your Committee
Chair does have a concern with the fact that there is no, no expiration, and we just wanted to give
you the reason why we took this position, and it's, it's totally the Commiss ... , I mean the
Council's prerogative to impose a time limit. We felt due to the use of the facility as a public
utility, both the Department and the Commission felt that it would be appropriate for the ... to
allow for the permit to remain valid as long as the facility operated as a water reclamation
facility. If they change the use in any way, they would have to obviously come back in.

- 32-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Mau;
June 7, 2006

In addition to that, Conditions 5 and 6 of your 1998 approval pretty much dealt with construction
of the facility, and being that the facility was already constructed, the Commission recommends
deletion of those two conditions. Are there any questions?
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Cua. We will now have public testimony. Public testimony is
now open. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, no one has signed up to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone in the gallery that wishes to give testimony on this agenda item at
this time? Hearing none, ifthere's no objection, we shall close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed. Before I call on Ms. Anderson, the Chair would
like to say that right from the beginning that I do have a problem with not having a timeframe on
that and leaving it open. I feel that, I hope the Members would think about and consider putting
five years or some other amount of time on there. I think it's a bad precedent and I think there
are things that could come up in the future ...that this would not be an appropriate action to take.
Having said that, I open the floor. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I, I. .. echo your sentiment and in fact I, I really
don't think an open-ended Conditional Permit meets any kind of land use standards, planning
standards. If, If.. .I mean that's the whole point of a Conditional Permit and, and so if... you
know, really the, the end result of a Conditional Permit should be a rezoning, Mr. Chair. If the
condition, if the condition of use, which is not a permitted use within the zoning category, turns
out to be an appropriate use and that there's no adverse impact, then the next step is to go ahead
and rezone it to the appropriate permitted use. So, you know, I know we're trying to avoid these
constant renewals of Conditional Permits because it takes up everybody's time, but if, if the user
and the Planning Department and the surrounding landowners have no problem with the existing
a Conditional Permit,
Conditional Use, then next time somebody comes up for a, a renewal
instead of extending it another five years or ten years, they should just tell
to get a rezoning
and rezone it to the appropriate condition or use. So,
you on that entirely,
Mr. Chairman.
like to know why the ownership was transferred, ifthere's a reason for that?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cua.
MS. CUA: That's probably something better answered by the applicant. We, we understand that the,
the facility was owned by, the facility itself was owned by Makena Resort Corporation and that
ownership changed to Makena Wastewater Corporation, which is an affiliate of Makena Resort
Corporation. That's about as much as I know. Hopefully the applicant can provide you more
information.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, you know, that it's a.. .it's a licensed public utility. Does
that mean that it, it's operation has to come under the Public Utilities Commission?
MS. CUA: Yes, that's my understanding. That's what was represented to us by the applicant at the
Planning Commission.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Okay... you know, I know that the intention is for the, for the plant
to, to recycle its effluent, but that there's also ... and I'm only reading--you know, as, Members,
as we are renewing a Conditional Permit, basically what we're doing is renewing the original
permit and the conditions attached to that original permit. And I'm hope, hoping, Ms. Cua, that
all the conditions .. .--{CHANGE OF TAPE}-- . .. Use Permit and the Conditional Use Permit have
all been fulfilled. Have you checked on that?
MS. CUA: Yes, and actually that is one of the reasons why we recommended deletion of a couple of the
conditions because they were met in, in the construction of the facility.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and which conditions are those?
MS. CUA: If you, if you look at Ordinance No. 2734, Conditions 5 and 6, 5 dealt with the lagoons
being constructed with steeply sloped side walls and a deep base foundation, and Condition 6
required that the final construction plans be submitted to the U.S. Department of the Interior,
Fish and Wildlife Service, and those were complied with.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Okay. Well, I see those Conditions as 15 and 16.
MS. CUA: Are you looking at the Conditional Permit?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah, I'm probably looking at the State Land Use conditions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

very last one-very

ones?

very last--

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that's neither here nor there. Those two conditions are, you
know, fine. So what you're saying is that all the existing conditions besides those two would go
forward with this permit?
MS. CUA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and so you will just what, attach the original permits to an
approval letter or will you redraft?
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MS. CVA: There, there's a new ordinance that has--you're talking about the Conditional Permit,
correct?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MS. CVA: There's a new ordinance that is before you, I believe, in your binder which...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.
MS. CVA: ... yeah ... which the, the new information is underlined and-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: So, Ms. Cua, do you have any information on the operation of the
plant itself as far as how much effluent is being discharged for reuse and how much is being
discharged in.. .injection wells?
MS. CVA: I don't have that kind of specific information. I just know that the plant is .. .it's operational
and it's, it's about 10 percent used right now, but, you know, they do have their operations ... the
person that operates the plant here. And I know the Commission, when we went to the Planning
Commission, the Commission did have lots of questions of him and which he answered.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's only 10 percent at its capacity?
MS. CVA: That is my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I'll wait till we have-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --the,

expert.

wait

you have him come up.

CARROLL:
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 'Cause you

ask for questions

CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. Question for the Planning Department.
With regards to Condition 2 ... the duration, was that driven by the applicant or is that more,
something that's coming out ofthe-MS. CVA: No-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --Department recommendation?
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MS. CUA: --it, it actually started, it came from the Department and, again, we were just, we were
looking at some of the thing, same things you guys had just talked about--the frequency of these
Conditional Permits coming to the Department, to the Council, and the type of facility that it
is--and we just felt, you know, because it's regulated by the PUC, it's a public facility, that was
our, that was our position at the time. You know, we understand about a time limit and, you
know, the Council has, has done anything from 1 year to up to 30 years for the Akinas. So that
would, I guess, be something that you would discuss today.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know the pump station that's located on Makena
Road? This is where .. .1, I guess the Makena Park?
MS. CUA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Or Makena Landing, by the church.
MS. CUA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Who owns that?
MS. CUA: Makena Resort.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Do we have any homeowners that are hookup to that particular pump
station now?
MS.CUA:

not sure. Can you ask. .. maybe the applicant-PONTANILLA:

okay,

Thank you.

MS. CUA: --can respond to that.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Ms. Cua, when this was discussed at Planning Commission or
with your Department, was there ever a move toward getting.. .instructing them to get a Change
in Zoning for this area?
MS. CUA: No, I don't believe we had discussions with them on that.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know they still have a pending rezoning application in front
of us and it seems to me that this, this was originally part of that rezoning?
MS.CUA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, it seems to me that it should be included eventually as part
of, as part of the whole rezoning package. I can't imagine if they're only at 10 capaci ... ,
10 percent capacity, that they will ever not need this--you know, what I mean?--until. . .I mean
the condition you've got right now, until it no longer operates. I guess that's under the
assumption that someday they'll hookup to the County system. But would you like to say
something about that, Ms. Cua?
MS. CUA: No. I mean our position was, you know, if, if they, yeah, if they decide someday to abandon
the facility for whatever reason, then at that point in time obviously the permit wouldn't apply.
But, again, we just felt because of the type of use that it was ...that, that is the reason why we,
we recommended the condition the way, the way we did and the Comm ... , the Planning
Commission agreed with that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? You had a request to-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd like to speak to their wastewater expert-CHAIR CARROLL: Uh .. _
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --or anybody

can--

CARROLL: Could.. _yeah, could you please come down, Mr. Figueiroa?
yourself at the mllcronh<me
MR. FIGUEIROA: Roy Fig ... , Roy Figueiroa, Makena... Resort Corp.
MR. OKA: John Oka, Makena Wastewater Corporation.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson, proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. I guess I need to speak to Makena Wastewater
Corporation, and that's you, Mr. Oka. Thank you. The plant is now operating at 10 percent
capacity?
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MR. OKA: Yeah, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so it was built for the full build-out of Makena Resort?
MR. FIGUEIROA: Excuse me, I'll have to answer that. Is that okay?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Whatever.
MR. FIGUEIROA: Okay. Yeah, at first it was built. .. we anticipated for the first phase, but the amount
of units we expect, it, it could handle the entire resort.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The full build-out?
MR. FIGUEIROA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So can you give me--I'm, I'm not sure how you measure
your effluent. Do you measure it by gallons per day?
MR. OKA: Okay. The plant was designed to handle about 720,000 gallons a day. That's the average
design for the complete size. What we're having is about 60 to 70,000 gallons a day and that we
service the hotel, the clubhouse, the golf clubhouse and just that immediate area. So it comes out
to about 60 to 70,000 gallons a day, which is about 10 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and then-MR. OKA: Oh, we just added a public restroom, the County comfort station down ... across from
Keawalai Church.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

you very

MR. OKA: --small usage.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And, and that's, what, maybe 10 gallons a day? .. .{chuckle} . ..
MR. OKA: Not a lot.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: " .{chuckle} . .. So of this 60 or 70,000 gallons a day, how much
ofthat is recycled effluent for reuse?
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MR. OKA: Okay. This is an R, R-1 facility and it's meant to provide 100 percent reuse, and as it is
right now, all of it goes to reuse on land. It's either the golf course or the surrounding vegetation
around the facility and for wash down.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And so there's no in ... , injection wells?
MR. OKA: No, they didn't approve any injection wells.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But I mean in your permit it does say that you could use injection
wells ifthere's too much effluent or if something breaks down or something?
MR. OKA: Okay. What that is in an R-1 facility whenever you do reuse, you have to have 100 percent
backup in an emergency.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.
MR. OKA: When your quality doesn't reach the Hawaii Administrative Rules 1162, then you have to
have an automatic bypass, and that will go into what we call an infiltration basin, which
it. .. very, very little and it's on your map here. It's the largest rectangular, oval shaped object
there. That is used very, very infrequently. Our quality of water is very, very high. Yeah, the
whole idea is to recycle it. We don't want to put anything in the, in there. We only use it
around-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's great. I'm really happy to hear that. So .. .I mean there's
no active injection, injection wells involved at all?
MR. OKA: No. Again, it's a backup that's required by the State.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. That's great. Okay. And
assuming you're there a
OKA:

one other question.

office is

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.

you notice any Hawaiian stilts

area?

MR. OKA: There are a few, uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And they use your ponds?
MR. OKA: Yeah, they'll ...we have the stilts and we have the egrets and we have ... everything comes
by to drink water. Uh-huh. It's good water.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: ... {chuckle} . .. Well, I guess it must be if they keep coming back,
even though U.S. Fish and Wildlife don't want them to be there.
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MR. OKA: Well, we don't control that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. OKA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much. Appreciate it.
MR. OKA: You're welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Ijust wanted to find out. .. and you could probably answer this,
Roy. Because the owner of the land is Ainamua Corporation, is that an affiliate of Makena
Resort or are they just a separate entity that operates the facility?
MR. FIGUEIROA: No, Ainamua is also an affiliate of Makena Resort.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I, I just wanted to understand a little bit better what this was.
And with regard to this being made a part of an actual rezoning so you wouldn't have to keep
coming back all the time, is there any reason why this was not incorporated in your request?
MR. FIGUEIROA: I don't remember.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: .. .{chuckle} . ..
MR. FIGUEIROA: I, I, frankly, don't remember.
probably--what was the year, was this one?

I'm trying to think of the sequence.

This

MS. CUA: '80, '87.
MR.

Yeah.

preceded the, this preceded I

rezonmg.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But would you consider looking at this one for rezoning
instead of, you know, going this route? Let's say if we extend the pennit like for five years or
whatever, or would this be something that you just might at some point in time not use for what
it's being used for now?
MR. FIGUEIROA: I think what the Department suggested was ... probably appealed to us the most. It
was a Conditional Pennit and because of the kind of facility it was, it wasn't something that you
were going to drop unless you just ceased all operation, and so that's why we felt it was
appropriate. We know that some particular facilities is difficult to find the specific--what you
call that?--zone for them to fall, and this I, I guess would be a public facility. Now I know this is
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still in the State Agricultural District, so I don't know if that would, what that would involve. So
given our experience, I think we should stick to the Conditional Permit and perhaps not put an
expiration date .... (chuckle) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon, Mr. Figueiroa and
Mr. Oka. I guess the simple question is I think Member Anderson alluded to, why, why the
change in ownership name? Is it just the--well, well, first of all, is Makena Wastewater an
affiliate of Makena Resort?
MR. FIGUEIROA: That's right. And Makena Waste, Makena Resort, we're the development arm of the
different entities that own the land, and then we needed to establish a dif... , a, a company, a
public utility company, and that's why Makena Wastewater Corp. was established as the public
utility company. And so that's why we wanted to transfer it to that company that has that license.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay. And so I guess there are no concerns with ... because prior
to Council approval, you know, to change the ownership name prior to Council approval, I guess,
there weren't any issues to doing that. I guess when, when officially did you make the transfer
of ownership name change?
MR. FIGUEIROA: We cannot remember. We'll have to--see, at one time I was the President of
Makena Wastewater Corp., too, but I cannot remember when that-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. FIGUEIROA: --when that change occurred,
satisfy the concerns of the permit.

since they were an affiliate, I think that we, we did

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CARROLL:

you,

Molina. Mr. Pontanilla.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Other than the, the bathroom facilities that you
provide service accommodations for our use, is there any private homes that are hooked up to
your system on that Old Makena Road?
MR. FIGUEIROA: No, not yet. And because we're not a government facility, we cannot require
anybody to hookup. But we did already provide a lateral to Keawalai Church so when they're
ready, they, they could easily also connect to the system. As far as the other properties on, on
that road, others have expressed interest, those that are contemplating building. But the ones that
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are already there, no one has approached me. I don't know, have they approached you? No one
has approached us on, on connecting, and they're not required to ...
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. FIGUEIROA: ... as long as it's not a government system. If it were a government system, I think
they would be required to hookup.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cua has a comment, Planning Department. Ms. Cua.
MS. CUA: Back on that, on the zoning issue or the potential of zoning this site, the, the ... the one thing
that everyone would need to keep in mind is that the property is zoned State Ag, County Ag, and
the surrounding area is also State Ag, County Ag; Community Plan is Public/Quasi-Public. You
know, the thing about changing the, the State Land Use District to Urban and changing the
zoning possibly to Public/Quasi-Public is that you'd have Urban... an Urban designation amidst
all this State Ag and State Urban. So ...that's just something to consider.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Thanks for that, Ann, but, you know,
it. .. the use is Public/Quasi-Public. It's not. .. and, you know, some people might call it Urban,
but it's not opening it up to urban use. It's just zoning and designating it for the use it's being
used for, which I think is more than appropriate. But, you know, that's only for discussion in the
future, Mr. Chair, not really for today because we're here to renew the Conditional Permit.
And .. .I got a little delay--you said something I wanted to follow up on, Roy. You said that you
guys have provided a lateral to Keawalai Church. Are they required ... do they have like a, a
cesspool right now? Do you know?
MR.

exactly

they

.. So, actually,

even

the, you

know, the ,..,.yrnh..,...t
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
MR. FIGUEIROA: --that particular one we hooked up because it did have a cesspool. Some of the
comfort stations out there are on septic tanks, so they're not required to hookup. So Keawalai
Church would have to make a determination as to whether they need to hookup or they would
provide a different type of system, and perhaps I, I believe they're already working on that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I appreciate you sending that lateral down there. Obviously,
you did it for the comfort station, but now Keawalai Church can hookup because whether
they've been notified or not eventually, if they're on a cesspool, they're going to have to change
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it out because State law is now req ... , Federal law actually is requiring, requiring all cesspools
for other than a single-family home to be changed out. So, I appreciate that-MR. FIGUEIROA: I believe they're already working on that and they're aware of it.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: That's great. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
recommendation?

Further discussion before the Chair gIves his

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Recommendation.
CHAIR CARROLL: Hearing none ... the Chair will entertain a motion to send on to first reading the
revised proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO.
2734 (1998), TO EXTEND A CONDITIONAL PERMIT TO ALLOW THE CONTINUED
OPERATION OF A WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY AND RELATED IMPROVEMENTS
WITHIN THE COUNTY AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT ON A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED
AT MAKENA, MAUl, HAWAII", and to file the communication.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Mr. Pontanilla.

Been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Molina.

Discussion?

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I yield to the floor.
"-<~."-'LPJW-'-'.

Ms. Anderson.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
like to amend the Condition No.2 ... and
Staffwill help me out there's anywhere else we need to do this, but I'd like to revert Condition
No.2 back to its original reading, that the Conditional Permit shall be valid for a period of five
years from the effective date of this ord ... , ordinance; provided that an extension of this permit
beyond this five-year period may be granted pursuant to Section 19.40.070 of the Maui County
Code.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Anderson.

Been moved by Ms. Anderson, seconded by Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I think that given the fact that they're only at
10 percent use of their full capacity that. .. and that there's still a lot of build-out ahead for the
Makena area and this wastewater plant, that I think it would be ... not prudent for us to give them
an open-ended Conditional Permit, and, and I'm against that anyway. I don't think that
Conditional Permits ...that's the purpose of a Conditional Permit. And so, I think that it would
be to everybody's best interest--I mean I don't think it's hurt anybody to come here after five
years to get this renewed--that we stick with the five-year time frame on this so that should
anything happen down the road, the Council still has a chance to address it. And hopefully,
Makena Resort or this new entity, Makena Wastewater Reclamation Company--whatever it
is--will see the wisdom and, and changing their zoning so that they don't have to come forward
for a Conditional Permit. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion on the amendment to the main motion? Seeing
none, all in favor please signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Kane, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Hokama and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to

main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL: Back to the main motion as amended. Discussion? See, seeing none, all those in
favor of the motion as amended, please signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Kane, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Hokama and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised proposed bill, and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, that brings us to the conclusion of business today. Thank you for
attending this Land Use meeting. This Land Use meeting of June 7, 2006 stands adjourned .
. . .(gavel) . ..

ADJOURN: 3:46 p.m.

APPROVED:

ROBERT CARROLL, Chair
Land Use Committee

Transcribed by: Tammy M. Frias
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